Licensing
Sub -Committee
Councillor Emma Ben Moussa
Councillor Richard Wells
Councillor Calvin McLean
Alternate Member:

Councillor Tom Maddison

A meeting of the above Sub - Committee will be held virtually on

Thursday 30 July 2020 at 1.30pm.
Details of how to access the meeting will be published along with the Agenda on the
Council’s web site or can be obtained by contacting Democratic Services.

Strategic Director (Internal Services)
22 July 2020

Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
AGENDA
Thursday 30 July 2020

1.

Election of Chairman

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declarations of Interest
To receive declarations of interest from Members including the
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or
Managing Director.

4.

Urgent Items
The Chairman will announce whether there are any urgent items and
their position on the agenda.

5.

Rules of Procedure

6.

Application By Mrs Yvonne Rickards For A Variation To The
Premises Licence Held By Wig & Gown, Spital Street, Dartford,
Kent DA1 1DX

(Pages 1 24)
(Pages 25 72)

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 5

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE RULES OF PROCEDURE (including
hearings held ‘virtually’)
1.

General

1.1

These rules of procedure are subject to the Statement of Licensing Policy, the Gambling
Policy Statement and the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations
2005, Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates)
Regulations 2005, Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises
certificates)(Amendment) Regulations 2012 and the Gambling Act 2005 (Proceedings
of Licensing Committees and Sub-committees) (Premises Licences and Provisional
Statements) Regulations 2007 (the ‘Regulations’). Where appropriate, the provisions of
the Regulations have been incorporated into these rules.

1.2

The Licensing Authority is The Dartford Borough Council.

1.3

‘Affected Person’ means in relation to the Affected Premises, the holder of a premises
licence or club premises certificate or club gaming/club machine permit or other permit
issued under the Gambling Act 2005, the premises user in relation to a temporary event
notice or temporary use notice, the applicant for a premises licence or club premises
certificate or club gaming/club machine permit or other permit issued under the
Gambling Act 2005 (where the application has not been determined), a person in receipt
of a provisional statement and an applicant for the grant or renewal of a personal licence.

1.4

‘Affected Premises’ means the premises the subject of the Application.

1.5

‘Application’ means:
(a) for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003, the application for the grant, variation or
review of a premises licence or club premises certificate, the application for a
temporary event notice or the application for the grant or renewal of a personal
licence.
(b) for the purposes of the Gambling Act 2005, the application for the grant, variation or
review of premises licences or the grant or cancellation of permits or the
consideration of a temporary use notices.

1.6

‘Interest’ means a disclosable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest as defined in
Annex 2 to these rules of procedure.

1.7

‘Interested Person’ means:
(a) for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003, any persons making Relevant
Representations;
(b) for the purposes of the Gambling Act 2005, any persons living in the vicinity of the
Affected Premises that are likely to be affected by the Application, or those persons
who are involved in a business in the vicinity of the Affected Premises that might be
affected by the Application;

Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 1 of 14

Agenda Item 5

Page 2

or
any person who is representing such persons.
1.8

‘Parties to the Hearing’ means Affected Person, Interested Person and Responsible
Authorities.

1.9

‘Relevant Representations’ means representations that relate to one or more of the
licensing objectives made by an Affected Person, Interested Person or Responsible
Authority.

1.10 ‘Responsible Authority’ means the bodies that must be fully notified of the Application
and that are entitled to make Relevant Representations to the Licensing Authority on the
Application and include the chief officer of police, the fire & rescue authority, the local
planning authority, environmental health, primary care trusts and public health boards
for the area in which the Affected Premises are situated.
2.

Composition of Sub-Committee and declaration of Interests

2.1 The Sub-Committee will ordinarily comprise three (3) Councillors of the Licensing
Authority’s Licensing Committee of whom, one will be appointed Chairman. The quorum
will be three (3) for the duration of the meeting. In addition, for meetings held virtually a
fourth Member will attend as an ‘Alternate Member’ as outlined in paragraph 2.2 below.
2.2 Substitution (subject to relevant training) is not permitted once a hearing has commenced,
unless the hearing is being held virtually, in which case, a fourth Member (the Alternate
Member) will be present throughout the hearing as an observer. Where the quorum is lost
(for whatever reason), the Alternate Member will take the place of the ordinary Member for
whom they are the substitute and will have all the powers and duties of an ordinary Member
of the Sub-Committee. Once a Member is substituted, they will no longer participate in the
hearing.
2.3

Councillors will declare any Interest and explain the nature of the Interest at the
beginning of the Sub-Committee meeting, or when the Interest becomes apparent and
unless they have been granted a dispensation, will not participate in any discussion of,
or have their vote taken on, the matter in which they have an Interest and will withdraw
from the meeting in accordance with Standing Order 19.

2.4

Where a Sub-Committee meeting becomes inquorate during the course of the meeting,
then the meeting will be adjourned to such time, place and date as may be determined
by the Councillors present. Decisions taken by the Sub-Committee before the meeting
becomes inquorate, will not be invalidated by a later lack of quorum. Where a meeting
of the Sub-Committee is being held virtually and one of the original members of the Subcommittee is no longer able to act (for whatever reason, which may be, but is not limited
to, a failure of technology) the Alternate Member will replace them and the quorum will
be maintained (unless another Member subsequently becomes unable to act).

2.5

Sub-Committee Councillors will have regard to the Probity in Licensing Guide.

3.
3.1

Notice of hearing
The Licensing Authority will give a notice to the Party to the Hearing, stating the date
and time and place at which the hearing is to be held (the ‘notice of hearing’) in
accordance with the provisions of the Regulations.

Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 2 of 14

Page 3

3.2

Agenda Item 5

The notice of hearing will be accompanied by information regarding the following: (a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

the rights of the Party to the Hearing as provided for in paragraphs 4.1 and 8.5
to these rules of procedure;
the consequences of not attending or not being represented at the hearing;
the procedure to be followed at the hearing;
any particular points on which the Licensing Authority considers that it will want
clarified at the hearing.

4.

Right of attendance, assistance and representation

4.1

Subject to paragraph 6.5 of these rules of procedure, a Party to the Hearing may attend
the hearing to make Relevant Representations and be assisted or represented by any
person whether or not that person is legally qualified. Where a hearing is held ‘virtually’,
the procedure detailed in paragraph 18 below will apply.
If a disability or illness prevents you or makes it difficult for you to comply with these rules
of procedure, please contact the Licensing Manager at least 72 hours in advance of the
meeting or as soon as it becomes apparent.

4.2

Upon receipt of the notice of hearing and within the period of time prescribed by the
Regulations, each Party to the Hearing will give to the Licensing Authority, a notice
stating:(a)
(b)

whether he/she intends to attend or be represented at the hearing;
whether he/she considers a hearing to be unnecessary.

4.3

In a case where a Party to the Hearing wishes any other person (other than his/her
representative) to appear at the hearing, the notice referred to in paragraph 4.2 above,
will contain a request for permission for such other person to attend at the hearing
accompanied by details of the name of that person and a brief description of the point
or points on which that person may be able to assist the Licensing Authority in relation
to the application.

4.4

A Party to the Hearing who wishes to withdraw any Relevant Representations they have
made may do so:
(a)
(b)

5.

by giving notice to the licensing manager no later than 24 hours before the day
on which the hearing is to be held; or
orally at the hearing.

Right to dispense with a hearing if all parties agree
Where all Parties to the Hearing agree that a Sub-Committee hearing is unnecessary and
have given notice to the Licensing Authority, and if the Licensing Authority agree that a
hearing is unnecessary, it may dispense with holding a hearing and will forthwith give
notice to the Parties to the Hearing, that the hearing has been dispensed with.

6.
6.1

Hearing to be in public
Subject to paragraphs 6.2 – 6.4 below, the hearing will take place in public. The press and
members of the public are able to observe the hearing (held in open session), but not
participate. Where the hearing is held virtually, it will be live streamed for members of the

Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 3 of 14

Agenda Item 5

Page 4

public and press, on YouTube.
6.2 The Sub-Committee will exclude the public and press from that part of the hearing where
confidential information is likely to be revealed i.e. information that has been provided by
a government department under the condition that it must not be revealed as well as
information that cannot be revealed under any legislation or by a court order.
6.3 The Sub-Committee will have the discretion to decide whether or not to exclude the public
and press from that part of the hearing, where exempt information i.e. information
contained in Annex 1 to these procedure rules is likely to be revealed.
6.4 When considering whether confidential or exempt information is likely to be revealed, the
Sub-Committee will consider whether any Parties to the Hearing should be excluded from
that part of the hearing, which is likely to disclose confidential and/or exempt information.
6.5 Disruptive behaviour
The Sub-Committee may require any person who is acting or behaving in a disruptive
manner, to leave the hearing and may –
(a)
(b)

refuse to permit that person to return; or
permit him/her to return only on such conditions as the Sub-Committee may
specify;

but subject to the person being provided with the opportunity to submit to the SubCommittee in writing, before the end of the hearing, any information which they would
have been entitled to give orally, had they not been required to leave.
7.

Report

7.1 The Sub-Committee will receive a report prepared by the licensing officer.
7.2 The licensing officer will comply with the access to information rules in Standing Orders
and submit a copy of the report to the Parties to the Hearing in advance of the hearing.
8.

Procedure at hearing
As a matter of practice, the Sub-Committee will seek to focus the hearing on the steps
needed to promote the particular licensing objective(s), which has given rise to the specific
representation(s) and will avoid straying into undisputed areas.

8.1 The order of business will be at the discretion of the Sub-Committee, but will normally
proceed in accordance with the following paragraphs.
8.2 The Chairman will at the beginning of the hearing, introduce the Sub-Committee
members, invite the Parties to the Hearing and any Councillor representative to identify
themselves and then explain to the parties the procedure that the Sub-Committee intends
to follow. Where a meeting is being held ‘virtually’, the procedure detailed in paragraph
18 below will apply.
8.3 The Sub-Committee will then proceed to consider any request made by a Party to the
Hearing for permission for another person to appear at the hearing. Permission will not
be unreasonably withheld.
Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 4 of 14

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

8.4 The Chairman may ask a representative of the Licensing Authority to introduce the report,
and outline the matter before the Sub-Committee. Alternatively, the Chairman may
proceed directly to paragraph 8.5 below.
8.5 Parties to the Hearing will be entitled to: (a)

(b)
(c)

give further information in support of their application, Relevant Representations
or notice (as applicable) in response to a point upon which the Licensing Authority
has given notice that it requires clarification;
question any other party* if given permission by the Sub-Committee,
address the Sub-Committee.

*cross examination will not be permitted unless the Sub-Committee considers that
cross examination is required for it to consider the Relevant Representations,
application or notice as the case may require
8.6 The Parties to the Hearing will normally be invited to address the Sub-Committee in the
following order: (a)
(b)
(c)

Affected Person
Responsible Authority
Interested Person

8.7 Members of the Sub-Committee may ask any question of any party to the hearing or other
person appearing at the hearing.
8.8 Where there is more than one Relevant Representation raising the same or similar
grounds, the Sub-Committee will request that only one party address them on behalf of
the parties who have made the Relevant Representations in question.
8.9 Subject to paragraph 8.10 below, in considering any Relevant Representations or notice
made by a Party to the Hearing, the Sub-Committee may take into account additional
documentary or other information produced by such a Party in support of their application,
Relevant Representations or notice (as applicable) either before the hearing date or, with
the consent of all the other parties and the Chairman, at the hearing. Where all the other
parties consent, the Sub-Committee has discretion as to whether to admit additional
documentary evidence or other information at the hearing, but will generally allow this to
be presented, if it is relevant and material to the application, the Relevant Representations
or notice submitted and the licensing objectives.
As a matter of good practice, any additional documentation or other information produced
in advance of the hearing date, should be submitted to the licensing officer no later than
two working days before the hearing.
8.10 The Sub-Committee will disregard any information given or evidence produced by a party
or any person to whom permission is given to appear at the hearing, which is not relevant
to:
(a)

(b)

their application, Relevant Representations or notice (as applicable) or in the
case of another person, the application, Relevant Representations or notice of
the party requesting their appearance, and
the promotion of the licensing objectives or, in relation to a hearing to consider a
notice given by a chief officer of police, the crime prevention objective.

Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 5 of 14

Agenda Item 5

Page 6

8.11 Hearsay evidence may be admitted before the Sub-Committee, but consideration will
always be given to the weight, if any, to be attached to such evidence, depending upon
the circumstances in which it arises.
8.12 CCTV and/or audio evidence (no longer than three minutes in length) in addition to a
description of how, when and where the CCTV/audio was recorded and what it contains,
may be submitted in evidence, at least 72 hours before the hearing is due to start. The
Chairman, exercising his/her discretion, will decide if it is necessary in the interests of
justice, for the CCTV/and/or audio evidence to be presented.
8.13 Video evidence must be submitted in MP4 format (no longer than three minutes in length).
The recording must be edited down to the highlights, containing only relevant matters,
which relate to the Relevant Representations. In addition, a description of how, when and
where the video was recorded and what it contains must be submitted in evidence, at
least 72 hours before the hearing is due to start. The Chairman, exercising his/her
discretion, will decide if it is necessary in the interests of justice for the video evidence to
be presented.
8.14 Subject to paragraph 8.15 below, the Parties to the Hearing will be entitled to make closing
submissions (not introducing any new evidence). The closing submissions of the Affected
Person will normally follow the closing submissions of any Responsible Authority and/or
Interested Person.
8.15 Should any Parties to the Hearing wish to rely on any points of law, specific references in
the s.182 Guidance1, Licensing Authority policy or any other external sources,
submissions must be submitted by email, to the Licensing Authority, at least three days
before the date of the hearing.
8.16 Unless stipulated by law, the Sub-Committee may vary the time limits specified in these
rules or set realistic time limits for constituent elements of the hearing and for the hearing
overall. All Parties to the Hearing will be allowed an equal maximum period of time overall
for the presentation of their case and will be allowed an equal maximum period for the
testing of their opponent’s case.
8.17 The Sub-Committee may, after hearing the Relevant Representations of the Parties to the
Hearing, withdraw from the room to make their deliberations, in closed session.
Alternatively, the Sub- Committee may ask all Parties to the Hearing and the public and
press, to leave the room. Where a meeting is being held ‘virtually’, the procedure detailed
in paragraph 18 below will apply to the deliberations of the Sub-committee in closed
session.
8.18 The Committee Co-ordinator will accompany the Sub-Committee when they retire to make
their deliberations.
9.

Role of Legal Adviser

9.1

The Sub-Committee may seek advice or clarification of any procedural, technical or legal
matter from the legal adviser at any time during the course of the hearing.

9.2

The legal adviser will provide the Sub-Committee with any advice it requires properly to
perform its functions whether or not the Sub-Committee requested that advice, on:
(a)

1

questions/points of law;

April 2018
Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 6 of 14

Page 7

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)

Agenda Item 5

questions of mixed fact and law;
matters of practice and procedure;
the range of options available to the Sub-Committee;
any relevant decisions of courts;
relevant national guidance or policy;
other issues relevant to the matter before the Sub-Committee;
the appropriate decision-making structure to be applied in any given case.

9.3

The legal adviser will assist the Sub-Committee where appropriate as to the formulation
of reasons and the recording of those reasons.

9.4

The legal adviser will play no part in making findings of fact, but may assist the SubCommittee by reminding it of the evidence taken from his/her own or the Committee Coordinator’s notes.

9.5

The legal adviser may ask questions of witnesses and the parties in order to clarify the
evidence and any issues in the case. The legal adviser is under a duty to ensure that
every case is conducted fairly.

9.6

When advising the Sub-Committee, the legal adviser should:
(a)
(b)
(c)

ensure that he/she is aware of the relevant facts;
invite Relevant Representations from the parties on the advice;
provide the parties with the information necessary to enable them to make their
Relevant Representation.

9.7

The legal adviser may join the Sub-Committee during the course of their deliberations
either when asked to do so or if he/she realises there is a point of law on which they may
need assistance, but on which he/she omitted to advise them in open session.

9.8

Any advice given by the legal adviser to the Sub-Committee will be provisional until the
substance of that advice has been repeated in open session and the Parties to the Hearing
have had an opportunity to comment on it. The legal adviser will then state in open
session, whether the advice is confirmed or varied (and if it is varied, in what way) before
the Sub-Committee act upon it.

10. Role of Committee Co-ordinator
10.1 The Committee Co-ordinator’s role will be to make a record of the proceedings,
summarise and record decisions and to provide help and assistance to members of the
public attending hearings.
10.2 The Committee Co-ordinator will remain with the Sub-Committee when it retires to make
its deliberations.
11. Determination of applications
11.1 The Sub-Committee will give appropriate weight to:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

the Relevant Representations (including supporting information) presented by all
the parties;
national guidance;
the Licensing Authority’s Licensing/Gambling Policy;
the steps that are necessary to promote the licensing objectives.

Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 7 of 14

Agenda Item 5

Page 8

11.2 The Sub-Committee will make its determination:
(a)
(b)

at the conclusion of the hearing; or
within five working days of the date of the hearing.

11.3 The determination will be issued by the Strategic Director (External Services) under
delegated authority. The licensing manager will append the licence and a summary to the
determination.
12. Failure of parties to attend the hearing
12.1 If a Party to the Hearing has informed the Licensing Authority that he/she does not intend
to attend or be represented at the hearing, the hearing may proceed in his/her absence.
12.2 If a Party to the Hearing fails to provide notification in accordance with paragraph 12.1
above, and fails to attend or be represented at a hearing, the Sub-Committee may:
(a)
(b)

where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the hearing to
a specified date; or
hold the hearing in the party’s absence and will consider at the hearing, the
application, Relevant Representations or notice made or submitted by that party.

13. Adjournments
13.1 Subject to the provisions of the Regulations, the Sub-Committee may, where necessary
for its consideration of any Relevant Representations or notice made by a party to the
hearing, adjourn the hearing to a specified date.
13.2 Where the Sub-Committee adjourns the hearing to a specified date, it will forthwith notify
the Parties to the Hearing of the date, time and place.
14. Record of proceedings
14.1 A record/minute of the hearing will be kept for 6 years from the date of determination or,
where an appeal is brought against the determination, the disposal of the appeal.
15. Waiver of rules
15.1 Except where prescribed by the Regulations, the Sub-Committee may in any particular
case, dispense with or modify these rules of procedure.
15.2 The Licensing Authority may extend the time limit provided for in the Regulations for a
specified period, where it considers this to be necessary in the public interest.
15.3 Where the Licensing Authority has extended the time limit, it will forthwith give a notice to
the Parties to the Hearing, stating the period of time of the extension and the reasons for
it.
16. Qualified Privilege
16.1 Statements made in Sub-Committee meetings are subject to the general principles of the
law of defamation. However, the Sub-Committee’s proceedings are regarded in law as a
Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 8 of 14

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

‘privileged occasion’ to which the doctrine of qualified privilege attaches to statements
made in its proceedings (quasi-judicial in nature), providing the following criteria are met:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

any opinions expressed are honestly held;
opinions/statements are based on the facts of the matter;
opinions/ statements are on a matter of public interest;
a clear distinction is made between what is fact and what is opinion;
no malice.

17. Licensing Committee Hearings
17.1 These rules of procedure will apply to hearings before the Licensing Committee except to
the extent that the Member composition of the Committee will comprise no less than 5
members.
18. Remote/Virtual Licensing Sub-Committee Hearings
18.1 Licensing Sub-Committee hearings may be held 'remotely’ using a virtual platform. Although
held in a virtual format, Sub-Committee hearings will follow the standard procedures referred
to above (including the Annexes) unless otherwise varied by these rules of procedure.
18.2 The ‘Procedure for Holding Remote Meetings and Etiquette’ at Annex 3 to these rules of
procedure will apply.
18.3 If the access methods to the virtual platform as referred to in the ‘Procedure for Holding
Remote Meetings and Etiquette’ are not available to a Party to the Hearing, the Subcommittee will apply the rules outlined in paragraphs 12 and 13 above, to consider whether
the hearing can proceed or consider an adjournment to another date/time to enable
attendance to be facilitated or for additional Relevant Representations to be made where
virtual attendance is not possible.
18.4 Before a remote hearing, Parties to the Hearing must submit by email, their Relevant
Representations (no longer than one side of A4 sized paper (equating to aproximately 500
words single spaced)), at least 72 hours before the hearing is due to start, summarising the
points they wish to make at the hearing and the outstanding issues. Early submission of
Relevant Representations will assist in the conduct of the remote hearing and the decisionmaking process.
18.5 At the conclusion of the hearing, the Sub-Committee will go into a separate, closed virtual
session, in order for it to deliberate on its decision. This may be achieved through:
18.5.1 Confidential ‘breakout room’ in the existing video hearing – where legal advice is
sought
(a) if enabled by the video conferencing platform, the Host will establish a confidential second
‘sub’ video-hearing room and invite the Councillors, Committee Co-ordinator and, if
requested by the Councillors, the legal adviser, to join the confidential hearing;
(b) Parties to the Hearing will be advised by the Host to leave the original virtual hearing session
and return within a time to be specified by the Host, to hear the Sub-Committee’s decision;
(c) once a decision is made, the Chairman will contact the Host to be returned to the original
virtual hearing session;
(d) the legal adviser will follow the procedure detailed in paragraph 9.8 above;
(e) the Chairman will announce the Sub-Committee’s decision.
Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 9 of 14

Agenda Item 5

Page 10

Or
18.5.2 Where legal advice is not sought and the legal adviser notified that he/she may stand
down
(a) the Host will terminate the original virtual hearing;
(b) Parties to the Hearing will leave the original virtual hearing;
(c) the Host will establish a second virtual session for Councillors to deliberate, assisted by the
Committee- Co-ordinator;
(d) the Sub-committee will issue its decision, supported by reasons, within five working days of
the date of the hearing.
HUMAN RIGHTS
The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and
makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way, which is incompatible with a convention
right. The Sub-Committee will have regard to the Human Rights Act when exercising its
licensing functions, with particular reference to the following provisions: 



Article 1 of the first protocol – every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of
his/her possessions
Article 6 - in the determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is entitled to a
fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and impartial
tribunal established by law
Article 8 – everyone has the right to respect for his/her home and private and family
life

RIGHT OF APPEAL
THE APPLICANT
The applicant has a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days [beginning with
the day on which the applicant was notified of the decision of the Licensing Authority] against
a decision.

PERSON MAKING RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS AND CHIEF OFFICER OF POLICE
A person who made Relevant Representations and the Chief Officer of Police has a right of
appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days [beginning with the day on which the person
was notified of the decision of the Licensing Authority] against a decision.

Adopted by the Licensing Committee on 29 March 2010 [Min.No.17]
Amended by authority of the GAC [16 July 2012 [Min.No.35]]
Adopted by the Licensing Committee 19.12.2012 [Min.No.11]
Prejudicial Interest definition reviewed and adopted by the GAC – 16.12.2013 [Min.No.72]

Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 10 of 14

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

ANNEX 1
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972
SCHEDULE 12A: PARTS 1-3
STANDING ORDER 46
ACCESS TO INFORMATION: CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION
Category
1.

Information relating to an individual

Qualification
Information is not exempt information unless it relates to
an individual of that description in the capacity indicated
by the description i.e. it must relate to and be recognisable
as referring to a particular living individual in the roles
indicated.
Information is only exempt:
(a) where disclosure is prohibited by statute; or
(b) where disclosure might involve providing personal
information about individuals; or
(c) where disclosure might breach a duty of
confidentiality; and
(d) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest
in not disclosing the information outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.

2.

Information which is likely to reveal the identity of
an individual

Information is not exempt information unless it relates to
an individual of that description in the capacity indicated
by the description i.e. it must relate to and be recognisable
as referring to a particular living individual in the roles
indicated.
Information is only exempt:
(a) where disclosure is prohibited by statute; or
(b) where disclosure might involve providing personal
information about individuals; or
(c) where disclosure might breach a duty of
confidentiality; and
(d) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest
in not disclosing the information outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.

3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs
of any particular person (including the authority
holding the information)

Information is not exempt information if it is required to be
registered by law e.g. Companies Act 1985, the Charities
Act 1993 etc.

‘financial or business affairs’ includes contemplated, as
well as past or current, activities

Information is only exempt if and for so long as:
(a) disclosure of the amount involved would be likely to
give advantage to a person entering into or seeking to
enter into a contract with the Council in respect of
property, goods or services whether the advantage
would arise as against the Council or as against other
persons; or
(b) disclosure would prejudice the efficiency and
effectiveness of the use of Council resources; or
(c) disclosure of trade secrets and other information
would, or would likely, prejudice the commercial
interests of any person, including the Council; and
(d) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest
in not disclosing the information outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.

This category will include commercial and contractual
interests

4.

Information relating to any consultations or
negotiations or contemplated consultations or
negotiations, in connection with any labour relations
matters arising between the authority or a minister
of the crown and employees of, or office- holders
under, the authority

Information is only exempt if and for so long as its
disclosure to the public:
(a) would prejudice the Council in those or any other
consultations or negotiations in connection with a
labour relations matter; and
(b) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest
in not disclosing the information outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.

‘Labour relations matters’ are as specified in paragraphs
(a) to (g) of Section 29(1) of the Trade Unions and Labour
Relations Act 1974 i.e. matters which may be the subject
of a trade dispute
Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 11 of 14

Agenda Item 5

Page 12

Category

Qualification

‘employee’ means a person employed under a contract
of service
‘office-holder’ means the holder of any paid office
appointments which are or may be made or confirmed by
the authority or by any joint board on which the authority
is represented or by any person who holds any such
office or is an employee of the authority

5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal
professional privilege could be maintained in legal
proceedings

6.

Information which reveals that the authority
proposes –
(a)

(b)

to give under any enactment a notice under or
by virtue of which requirements are imposed on
a person, or
to make an order or direction under any
enactment

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken
in connection with the prevention, investigation or
prosecution of crime

Information is only exempt:
(a) where a claim of legal professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings e.g. correspondence
such as legal advice and assistance between the
Council’s Legal Services and its client; and
(b) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest
in not disclosing the information outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.
Information is exempt only if and so long as:
(a) disclosure to the public might afford an opportunity to
a person affected by the notice, order or direction to
defeat the purpose or one of the purposes for which
the notice order or direction is to be given or made; and
(b) in all circumstances of the case, the public interest in
not disclosing the information outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.

Information is only exempt if its disclosure would, or
would be likely to, prejudice(a) criminal investigations and proceedings; or
(b) the apprehension or prosecution of offenders; or
(c) the administration of justice; or
(d) the assessment or collection of any tax or duty or of
any imposition of a similar nature; or
(e) regulatory enforcement; or
(f) any civil proceedings; or
(g) Health and safety; or
(h) information obtained from confidential sources; and
(i) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest
in not disclosing the information outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.

Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 12 of 14

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

ANNEX 2
INTERESTS
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as prescribed by the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest) Regulations 2012 are as follows and subject to the following definitions:
“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011
“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body
corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest
“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society
“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant
person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income
“M” means a member of the relevant authority
“member” includes a co-opted member
“relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member
“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives a notification for the purposes of
section 30(1), or section 31(7), as the case may be, of the Act
“relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of the Act (the Member’s spouse, civil partner,
or somebody with whom they are living as a husband or wife, or as if they were civil partners)
“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the
meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with
a building society
Interest
Employment,
office,
trade,
profession
or
vacation
Sponsorship

Contracts

Description
Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant authority) made
or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying out duties
as a member, or towards the election expenses of M.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade
Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the relevant person
has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority:
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and

Land
Licences
Corporate tenancies

(b) which has not been fully discharged.
Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority.
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a
month or longer.
Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge):
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.

Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 13 of 14

Agenda Item 5

Securities

Page 14

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:
(a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the relevant
authority; and
(b) either
(i)
the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that body; or
(ii)
if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the
shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Prejudicial Interests (as prescribed by Dartford Borough Council)
A prejudicial interest means an interest (other than a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) in any matter under
consideration at any meeting which may reasonably be regarded as affecting your financial position or the financial
position of a person or body you are associated with:18.2.1
to a greater extent than other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the Council’s
area; and
18.2.2
where a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard the
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment.
You will not normally have a prejudicial interest if:

(a) you are a tenant of the Council provided that the matter under consideration does not relate particularly
to your tenancy or lease; or

(b) you are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, unless the matter under
consideration relates particularly to the school which your child attends; or

(c) you are in receipt of, or are entitled to the receipt of, statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social
Security Contributions and Benefits Act 1992; or

(d) as a member of the Council, you are given a payment or indemnity; or
(e) as a member of the Council, you are being/have been bestowed a ceremonial honour by the Council;
or

(f) the Council is setting the council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992; or
(g) you serve as a member of a body exercising functions of a public nature (e.g. other government
agencies, other councils, public health bodies, school governing bodies), unless the matter under
consideration relates particularly to the body.

Amended by the GAC - 27.02.17- Min.No.75(4)

Date: 15 May 2020
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure
Page 14 of 14

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

ANNEX 3

Dartford Borough Council - Procedure for Holding Remote
Meetings and Etiquette
1. Section 78(2) of the Coronavirus Act 2020 provides for local authority meetings
to be held remotely, from 4 April 2020 until 7 May 2021, to facilitate the
transaction of business during the COVID-19 pandemic crisis and to comply with
the Government’s measures to combat the disease, which includes social
distancing measures.
Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972, requires Councillors to be
physically (in-person) present at a meeting. Reg.6 of the Local Authorities and
Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police
and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (the 2020
Regulations), provides that being present at a meeting, includes being present
through remote attendance.
2. Social distancing aims, through a variety of means, to minimise physical contact
between individuals and thereby to reduce the possibility for new infections.
This includes the curtailing of social contact through the holding of physical inperson meetings.
3. The Council has made arrangements for meetings to be held ‘virtually’ from
remote locations, where it is necessary to consider matters which are, by their
nature, essential for the proper conduct of the Council’s business (including
complying with statutory requirements, legal or contractual obligations, or to
meet the needs of public health and well-being) and which are time-critical.
4. The Council has adopted a new Standing Order 64 (attached as an Appendix
to this procedure) to provide for and to regulate the meetings held remotely, by
electronic means, including by telephone conference, video conference, live
web casts and live interactive streaming or by any other appropriate channel of
communication chosen by the Council, which meets the requirements of the
2020 Regulations.
5. The Council’s procedural Standing Orders regarding voting, the casting vote of
the chairman, quorum, declarations of interest and substitution will apply to
remote meetings.
6. Remote meetings are meetings in public and as such, the public and press
must, as a minimum requirement, be able to hear the proceedings, but the
Council will strive to ensure that they can see and hear proceedings where this
is practicable, when meetings are held in open session. This will generally be
achieved through the live steaming of meetings on YouTube.
Unless public participation in a meeting is provided for in the Council’s
constitutional arrangements (see section 11 below), the press and members of
1
Procedure for Holding Remote Meetings and Etiquette 19 May 2020

Agenda Item 5

Page 16

ANNEX 3

the public only have a right to observe meetings, which are held in open
session.
7. The Council has the discretion as to which of the various video-conferencing
platforms to use for its video-hearings. The Council will indicate on its website,
the video-conferencing platform being used with instructions on how to join the
remote hearing, including who to contact in the event of technological difficulties.
An officer will act as ‘Host’ and will have the technical conduct of the meeting
only. Remote access may be through:
(a)

(b)

a computer, lap top or other smart device with an internet connection,
with participation by video link (access credentials/instructions to the
virtual platform will be provided by the Host); or
by telephone (access credentials/instructions to the virtual platform will
be provided by the Host);

Or
(c)

if the access methods referred to above are not available, through a
written statement to be read to the Chairman (or nominee) during the
relevant part of the meeting.

8. The meeting will be recorded to assist with the production of the minutes of the
meeting. The recording will be retained until the minutes have been agreed (not
necessarily signed by the Chairman), at the next remote or in-person physical
meeting, at which point, the recording will be erased.
9. Meetings held in open session will be live streamed on YouTube, details of
which will be publicised on the Council’s website. Live streams will be retained
until the minutes have been agreed in accordance with section 8 above and
thereafter deleted.
10. Process
(1) At least 5 clear working days’ before the meeting, the Democratic Services
team will ensure that the agenda for the meeting:
(a)

(b)

is posted or emailed to Councillors and any members of the public who
are attending remotely to exercise a right to speak at the meeting in
accordance with constitutionally adopted procedures (see section 11
below); and
is published electronically on the Council’s website in a common format
(e.g. PDF) and common pagination, to permit ease of reference during
the remote hearing.

The process referred to in (a) and (b) above, will be apply to any additional or
late items, including any items to be ‘tabled’ as soon as they become available.

2
Procedure for Holding Remote Meetings and Etiquette 19 May 2020

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

ANNEX 3

(2) If a Councillor is being substituted, they must at least three hours before the
meeting start time, notify the name of their substitute to the Democratic
Services team.
(3) Where considered appropriate, the Democratic Services team will prepare an
informal briefing note for the Chairman and relevant officers before each
meeting. The briefing note will be emailed to them, in advance of the meeting.
(4) The Chairman and relevant officers will sign in to the virtual platform at least
fifteen (15) minutes before the start time for the meeting, to ensure that
connectivity is secure and to identify any other technological issues.
Councillors, officers and any members of the public who are attending remotely
to exercise a right to speak at the meeting, should sign in to the meeting at least
ten (10) minutes before the start time.
(5) Before the start of the meeting, the Host will confirm that the meeting:
(a) is available in real time (audibly as a minimum requirement);
(b) is being recorded; and
(c) is being live streamed for members of the public and press, on the Council’s
YouTube channel.
(6) The Democratic Services Officer and the Chairman will ensure that they are
able to clearly see all Councillors and any members of the public who are
attending remotely to exercise a right to speak at the meeting, or otherwise to
identify them, at the start of the meeting. In the case of any uncertainty, the
Democratic Services Officer will take a roll call and record the names of those
in attendance, including officers, for inclusion in the minutes. The Chairman will
also establish at the start of the meeting, that Councillors and any members of
the public who are attending remotely to exercise a right to speak at the meeting
and officers, are able to hear or to hear and see the proceedings.
(7) The Chairman will proceed with the business on the agenda and establish
whether any Councillor needs to declare an interest in any item on the agenda,
which may require them to leave the meeting. Any such items will stand
deferred until the end of the agenda, to enable the Councillor concerned to
leave the meeting at that point. Should any Councillor become aware that they
have an interest during the discussion of an item, they must declare the interest
and discussion of that item will immediately end and be deferred to the end of
the agenda.
Where more than one item stands deferred to the end of the agenda, the items
will be discussed in the order in which they appear on the agenda, unless the
3
Procedure for Holding Remote Meetings and Etiquette 19 May 2020

Agenda Item 5

Page 18

ANNEX 3

order is changed by the Chairman, with the consensus of the Councillors
present at the meeting.
(8) The Host will ensure that a Councillor who has declared an interest in an item
has ‘left’ that part of the meeting during the consideration of the item. At the end
of the consideration of that item, the Host will contact the Councillor concerned
to advise them that they can re-join the meeting. The Democratic Services
Officer will note in the minutes, the point at which they ‘leave’ and/or re-join the
meeting.
(9) Any confidential or exempt items will be taken at the end of the meeting
(following consideration of any items in which Councillors have declared an
interest). The Chairman will ask any members of the public who have attended
remotely to exercise a right to speak at the meeting to ‘leave’ the meeting. The
Host will confirm that the meeting is now in confidential session or that a
confidential ‘breakout room’ in the existing video hearing has been established.
(10) Before discussing any confidential or exempt items, the Chairman will ask all
Councillors and officers to confirm, by affirmation, that they are in a secure
location and that no one else is able to see or hear the discussion. Where any
Councillor or officer is not in a secure location and cannot make it secure by
asking others to leave the room, they must leave the meeting during
consideration of the item(s). The Democratic Services Officer will note in the
minutes, the point at which they ‘leave’ and/or re-join the meeting.
(11) The Chairman will use their best endeavours to ensure that Councillors do not
‘drift’ in and out of open session and that any discussion of exempt/confidential
information only takes place in ‘closed’ session at the end of the meeting.
If, having commenced the proceedings, the meeting becomes inquorate for any
reason, this will be drawn to the attention of the Chairman. The procedures
detailed in Standing Order 6 and Standing Order 64 will apply.
(12) Voting will generally be by affirmation where the Councillors present at the
meeting are clearly visible and/or audible and there is no doubt over how they
wish to vote. Where there is any doubt over the outcome of a vote, or where
not all Councillors are clearly visible and/or audible, the Chairman will ask for a
vote to be taken by roll call. The Democratic Services Officer will read out the
names of the Councillors in alphabetical order and ask each Councillor to
clearly state their voting intention, including the Chairman at the end (bearing
in mind that in the case of an equality of votes, the Chairman has a second or
casting vote). The Democratic Services Officer will advise the Chairman of the
outcome of the vote and the Chairman will advise the meeting accordingly.
(13) At the end of the meeting, all Councillors, officers and any members of the
public who have attended remotely to exercise a right to speak at the meeting

4
Procedure for Holding Remote Meetings and Etiquette 19 May 2020

Page 19

Agenda Item 5

ANNEX 3

will exit/leave the virtual platform. The Host will ensure that the meeting has
ended and will make the recording of the meeting available to the Democratic
Services Team to assist with the post-meeting administration.
(14) Following the meeting, the Democratic Services Officer will draft minutes of the
meeting for agreement with the Chairman, at which point, the minutes will be
published as ‘draft minutes’ on the Council’s website. Once the minutes have
been confirmed at the next meeting of the body concerned, whether that be a
remote or physical meeting, the recording of the meeting will be erased. If
agreed at a remote meeting, the minutes will retrospectively be ‘wet-ink’ signed
by the Chairman, as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter.
11.

Public Speaking - Quasi-Judicial/Regulatory/Overview and Scrutiny
Meetings

(1) In accordance with the Council’s constitution, the public have certain rights to
address meetings of the Development Control Board and Licensing Subcommittee hearings. External participants may also be invited to attend
overview and scrutiny committee meetings. These rights are set out in the
protocols of the bodies concerned.
(2) The Protocol for Public Speaking at Development Control Board and the
Licensing Sub-committee Rules of Procedure apply to meetings held remotely.
(3) To protect against disruptive participants and ensure the smooth running of the
meeting, the Council is entitled to strike a balance between a hearing being
public and the smooth running of the meeting. The Council reserves the right
to password protect a meeting, ‘lock’ the meeting once it has begun, screen
those joining the meeting etc. Muting disruptive participants will be the Council’s
default position.
12.

General Etiquette: The following applies to Councillors, officers and members
of the public who exercise their right to address meetings in accordance with
section 11. above.
Virtual meetings are formal meetings of the Council, viewed by the public and
press. The following rules must be adhered to and etiquette observed:

(a)

log onto the virtual platform at least 10 minutes before the meeting is due to
start. A telephone number of an officer will be provided in case of technical
difficulties on the day;

(b)

limit distractions - consider where IT equipment is placed in your home – to
avoid disturbance from other members of the household, pets or other
distractions;

(c)

give the meeting your full attention - avoid multi-tasking e.g. taking phone
calls, dealing with emails, texts and social media during the meeting;
5

Procedure for Holding Remote Meetings and Etiquette 19 May 2020

Agenda Item 5

Page 20

ANNEX 3

(d)

pick a location with plenty of light and a neutral background - try to ensure
that your camera is placed to give a clear, front-on view of your face and
avoid sitting in front of a widow or other light source that may put your face
into shade;

(e) use headphones or a headset to improve sound quality and avoid ‘echoes’;
(f)

to improve broadband performance, consider whether other use of the
broadband connection in your household can be reduced during the meeting;

(g) dress appropriately, remembering that this is a public meeting, and present
yourself in a business-like manner;
(h) if you experience technical difficulties during the meeting, you should inform
the Chairman and the Host if possible, and avoid disrupting the meeting;
(i)

you will be invited by the Chairman to speak at appropriate points. Your
microphone will be muted by the Host, until you are invited by the Chairman
to speak;

(j)

speak clearly - you will make your statement, or the statement will be made
on your behalf and wait until invited to speak again, if considered necessary
by the Chairman;

(k) act professionally and courteously - you should not speak over or interrupt
another speaker;
(l)

be prepared for technical difficulties - if there are intermittent faults during the
virtual hearing, repeat from the point of disruption. Whilst intermittent
disruption is frustrating, it is important that you remain professional and
courteous at all times;

(m) check that there is nothing in the background that would be inappropriate, or
show something you would not want others to see. For example, pictures of
children or other family members, posters etc. Virtual video backgrounds can
be used to avoid distractions and preserve your privacy, if you are joining the
virtual meeting from your home.
Etiquette specifically for Councillors:


only participate in formal votes where you have been able to hear all the
debate on an item;



the chat facility is useful, but you should be careful not to broadcast
inappropriate comments during the meeting.



the chat facility may be used for the following:
(a) to indicate to the Chairman that you wish to speak;
6

Procedure for Holding Remote Meetings and Etiquette 19 May 2020

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

ANNEX 3

(b) to seek clarification or ask questions;
(c) to attempt to resolve minor technical issues.
 it is inappropriate to use the chat facility to:
(a) carry out a parallel conversation about the issues being considered;
(b)carry out superfluous chitchat or make party political comments.
13.

Drawing matters to the Chairman’s attention
The Host will make available a secure tool e.g. ‘chat’ facility and ‘hand raise
function’, to enable:
(a)
(b)

officers attending the meeting to offer confidential and procedural advice
to the Chairman;
Councillors or participants wishing to raise matters during the meeting.

The Host will, through a secure tool, draw the matter to the Chairman’s
attention.
14.

Data Protection
The Council’s data processing activities are as set out in its Privacy Notice for
Virtual-Remote Access Meetings.

7
Procedure for Holding Remote Meetings and Etiquette 19 May 2020

Agenda Item 5

Page 22
Appendix

STANDING ORDER 64 – HOLDING MEETINGS REMOTELY
(1)

The Coronavirus Act 2020 (section 78(2)) makes provision for ‘persons to attend, speak
at, vote in, or otherwise participate in, local authority meetings without all of the persons,
or without any of the persons, being together in the same place’.

(2)

This Standing Order 64 applies to meetings of the General Assembly of the Council,
Cabinet, Committees, Boards and Panels and the Annual Meeting, that are required to
be held or held, before 7 May 2021, or earlier, in accordance with secondary legislation.

(3)

The Council shall hold its meetings at such hour and on such days, and alter the
frequency, move or cancel such meetings as it may determine, without requirement for
further notice1.

(4)

This Standing Order 64 shall apply notwithstanding any standing orders or rules to the
contrary.

(5)

For the purposes of this Standing Order 64:
(a) ‘remote access’ means attendance, participation in or observance of a meeting by
electronic means, including by telephone conference, video conference, live
webcasts and live interactive streaming;
(b) ‘attendance’ means both attendance in person and participation in the meeting by
Councillors and observance of the meeting, by the public and press using one of
the methods of remote access described above in real time when the meeting is in
open session;
(c)

(6)

‘place’ means more than one location, including the Civic Centre, an electronic or
a digital or virtual location, a web address or a conference call telephone number.

Quorum
The rules set out in Standing Order 6 (Quorum for Meeting of the Council) and Standing
Order 29 (Quorum of the Cabinet, Committees, Sub-Committees, Boards and Panels),
shall apply.

(7)

Remote Attendance
(a) A person, whether a Councillor or member of the public or press, may attend a
meeting by remote access.
(b) Meetings shall be held at a place, to suit the Council’s needs and capacity.
(c) Remote attendance of Councillors at meetings shall only be permitted where the
conditions of section 5(3) of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 are met2. A Councillor will be in remote

1

Where notice of a meeting is required and has been given, but the meeting is subsequently cancelled, altered or moved, further
notice does not need to be given in respect of that change
These conditions allow Councillors to join via a video link system or by telephone so long as every Councillor can be heard by
every other Councillor and the public and press

2

Page 23

Agenda Item 5
Appendix

attendance where they are able to hear and where practicable see, and be similarly
heard or seen by:
(i) other Councillors whether attending in person or in remote attendance; and
(ii) any members of the public who are attending remotely to exercise a right to
speak at the meeting in accordance with constitutionally adopted procedures;
and
(iii)any other members of the public and press attending the meeting remotely to
observe.
(d) A Councillor who has declared an interest in an item shall pause/exit their remote
access whilst the item is being considered. The Interim Transformation Manager (or
nominee) shall inform/re-invite the Councillor (whether by email or otherwise) when
to re-start the remote access and resume their participation in the meeting. Where
practicable, discussion in an item in which a Member has declared an interest, or
where they become aware during discussion of an item that they need to declare
an interest, shall be moved to the end of the agenda.
(e) Where the public and press are excluded (either for the whole or part of the
meeting) in accordance with Standing Order 46 (Admission of Public to Meetings),
before Councillors can participate in the consideration of any confidential and/or
exempt item of business, they shall confirm to the Chairman, that they are in a
secure and private location, and that no-one else is able to hear or view the
proceedings from their device.
(f) The Mayor or Chairman may call for a short adjournment of the meeting to enable
the rectification of any failure in technological provision or the loss of a quorum
arising from technical failure, or loss of a quorum for any other reason.
(g) The failure of any technological provision, including lack of network coverage for the
public and the press, whether that leads to a partial or complete loss of contact
between the remote attendees shall not invalidate any part of the deliberations of or
any vote taken at the meeting, providing a quorum is maintained. If a quorum is lost,
the matters in question shall be reaffirmed once a quorum has been restored.
(8)

Voting
(a) Votes shall be taken by role call or affirmation e.g. ‘is that agreed?’ providing that
this is clear and apparent.
(b) Votes may be recorded in accordance with Standing Order Order 13(3) (Voting in
Council) and Standing Order 30(2) (Voting in Cabinet, Committees, SubCommittees, Boards or Panels).
(c) If there is an equality of votes (whether or not the voting includes a vote by the Mayor
or Chairman), the Mayor or Chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

(9)

Minutes
Minutes shall be drawn up and recorded in accordance with Standing Order 15
(Minutes) and shall be submitted for confirmation to the next succeeding meeting of
the body concerned, whether this is held remotely or in a physical location. Where
minutes are agreed at a remote meeting, they shall be retrospectively signed by the
Mayor or Chairman, at the next physical meeting of the body concerned.

Agenda Item 5

Page 24
Appendix

(10) Access to meeting documents
For the purposes of this Standing Order 64, notices, agendas, reports, background
papers, minutes etc. shall be deemed to be ‘open to inspection’ and supplied3, by
publication on the Council’s website only and not by physical display at the Civic Centre
or Dartford Library.
.

3

Local Government Act 1972, the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012 and the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020

APPLICATION BY MRS YVONNE RICKARDS FOR A VARIATION
TO THE PREMISES LICENCE HELD BY WIG & GOWN, SPITAL
STREET, DARTFORD, KENT DA1 1DX
GREENHITHE
1. Summary
1.1

To determine an application to vary a Premises Licence.

2. Background and Discussion
2.1

The Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) requires the Council (as licensing
authority) to carry out its various licensing functions so as to promote the
following four licensing objectives:
(1)

the prevention of crime and disorder;

(2)

public safety;

(3)

the prevention of public nuisance;

(4)

the protection of children from harm.

2.2

The 2003 Act further requires the Council to publish a ‘Statement of
Licensing Policy’ that sets out the policies the Council will generally
apply to promote the licensing objectives when making decisions on
applications made under the Act. The General Assembly of the Council
adopted the Council’s current Statement of Licensing Policy, on 10
December 2018 [Min. No 72]. Should the need arise, the Policy will be
available at the meeting, for reference purposes.

2.3

Under the 2003 Act, it is the duty of all licensing authorities that, in
carrying out their functions, they must have regard to guidance issued by
the Secretary of State under section 182. The Guidance cannot
anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may
arise. Provided that the licensing authority has properly understood and
considered the Guidance, it may depart from it when it has reason to do
so. However, as the licensing authority is under a duty to have regard to
the Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for its departure from it.
This would be a key consideration for the courts should departure from
the Guidance result in a determination, which gives rise to an appeal or
judicial review. Should the need arise the Guidance will be available at
the meeting, for reference purposes.
SD1

Agenda Item 6

Page 26
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020

2.4

3

Applications will be considered on their individual merits and the SubCommittee will impose any conditions that it considers appropriate to
promote the licensing objectives.

THE APPLICATION
3.1

Application
The application is to vary a Premises Licence under Section 34 of the
Licensing Act 2003 in relation to the premises Wig & Gown Public House
– Appendix A.
(a)

The Operating Schedule shows the following licensable activities
and trading hours with proposed amendments to the existing
conditions additional conditions as shown at (f) and (g) below:

(b)

Relevant licensable activities:

(c)



To include Films:
 08:00-00:30 Sunday to Thursday
 08:00-02:30 Friday and Saturday
 Christmas Eve, New Year’s Eve and Sundays prior to a
Bank Holiday until 02:00



To include Live Music:
 19:00-00:30 Sunday to Thursday
 19:00-02:30 Friday and Saturday
 Christmas Eve, New Year’s Eve and Sunday prior to a
Bank Holiday until 02:00
 Acoustic music in the garden until 22:00 everyday



To include Late Night Refreshment:
 23:00-00:00 Sunday to Saturday

Hours for the sale and supply of alcohol:
No variation is sought.
Under the current licence, alcohol sales are permitted for
consumption on the premises between the hours of:
10:00 – 00:00 Sunday to Thursday.
10:00 – 02:00 Friday and Saturday
Christmas Eve, New Year’s Eve and Sunday prior to a Bank
Holiday until 02:00

(d) Other times premises proposed to be open to the public:

Page 27

Agenda Item 6

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020

No changes are proposed to the current opening hours of:
10:00 – 00:30 Sunday to Thursday.
10:00 – 02:30 Friday and Saturday
Christmas Eve, New Year’s Eve and Sunday prior to a Bank
Holiday until 02:30
(e)

The DPS is Mrs Yvonne Rickards.

(f)

The following Conditions under Annex 2 and Annex 3 of the
current licence (Appendix B) to be removed:
a. When the premises are open on Thursday, Friday and Saturdays
and Bank holidays there will be no admission or re-admission
after 00:00 hours.
b. The rear garden shall not be used by patrons after 21:00 Sunday
to Thursday, nor after 22:30 on Fridays, Saturdays, Bank
Holidays or Christmas Eve.
c. Bottles and other waste should not be removed from the
premises and tipped into refuse and recycling bins between 21:00
and 08:00. Kitchen waste may be emptied until 21:30. Waste and
recycling bins utilised shall be lidded and large enough to hold all
waste generated by the premises.
d. When the premises are open between 20:00hrs till close on
Thursday, Friday and Saturdays and Bank Holidays a minimum of
4 SIA door supervisors must be present at the customer entrance
and exit of the premises

All other conditions remain unchanged.
(g)

Additional conditions proposed to promote the licensing objectives:


When the premises are open on Friday and Saturdays and
Sundays prior to Bank Holidays there will be no admission or readmission after 01:45 hours.
 The rear garden shall not be used by patrons after 00:00 Sunday
to Saturday.
 Bottles and other waste should not be removed from the premises
and tipped into refuse and recycling bins between 00:00 and 08:00.
Kitchen waste may be emptied until 00:30. Waste and recycling
bins utilised shall be lidded and large enough to hold all waste
generated by the premises.
 When the premises are open between 20:00 hrs till close on Friday
and Saturdays and Sundays prior to Bank Holidays a minimum of 3
SIA door supervisors must be present at the customer entrance
and exit of the premises.

4

RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS
4.1

Responsible Authorities

Agenda Item 6

Page 28
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020







4.2

Police – The Police have made representation based on the
licensing objective of ‘crime and disorder’, ’prevention of public
nuisance’ and ‘public safety’- Appendix C
Environmental Health Officer – has made no representation
based on the licensing objective ‘prevention of public nuisance’ –
Appendix D
Planning Officer – has made no representation.
Fire Safety Officer – has made no representation.
Child Protection Agency – has made no representation.
Trading Standards - have made no representation.

Interested Parties
A response was received from Councillor Rosanna Currans, the Dartford
Ward Councillor and Portfolio Holder for the High Street Revival & Town
Centre based on the licensing objectives of the prevention of ‘crime and
disorder’ and ‘public nuisance’ – Appendix E.

4.3

Local Policy Considerations
It is considered that the following Policies have a bearing upon the
application and these are summarised at Appendix F.

4.4

Secretary of State Guidance Considerations
It is considered that the following matters set out in the Secretary of
State’s Guidance have a bearing upon the application, as summarised at
Appendix G.

4.5

Human Rights
The Council has a duty under Article 8 of the European Convention on
Human Rights to protect the rights of its residents to privacy and family
life. The Council also acknowledges the rights of businesses in its area
to operate, but this must be balanced against the rights of residents not
to be disturbed by unreasonable noise and nuisance caused by
licensed premises.

4.6

Conditions
In all applications relating to premises licenses, the Council expects
applicants to specify methods by which they will promote the four
licensing objectives in their operating schedules. Even if the applicant
does comply with any of the paragraphs listed below, they may not
necessarily achieve the promotion of the licensing objectives in a given
case. Where appropriate, and in order to promote the four licensing
objectives, the Sub-Committee may attach additional conditions to
premises licences.
(a) The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Page 29

Agenda Item 6

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020
This may, for example, be promoted by employing registered door
supervisors, ensuring staff have attained relevant BIIAB
qualifications, i.e. the Drugs Awareness Certificate, the Barperson’s
National Certificate, the Professional Barperson’s Qualification etc.,
incorporating a search policy into the entry conditions of the
premises, the location and standard of any CCTV systems on the
premises, restrictions on the irresponsible use of ‘happy hours’ and
other drinks promotions.
The applicant proposes to remove the conditions outlined in
3.1(f) and replace with conditions in 3.1(g) - all other
conditions in Appendix B remain unchanged.
(b) Public Safety
This may, for example, be promoted by ensuring that staff has the
appropriate training, ensuring that safe capacity limits are set and
that there is no overcrowding, that fire-fighting equipment is
checked regularly, and that certificates required by the Council are
available by the relevant date.
The applicant proposes to remove the conditions outlined in
3.1(f) and replace with conditions in 3.1(g) - all other
conditions in Appendix B remain unchanged.

(c) The Prevention of Public Nuisance
The Council will take particular care to ensure that residents are
not disturbed late at night. Where an application is made for a new
licence or for an extension of hours beyond 11pm, the Council will
not grant the application unless satisfied that it will not create an
unreasonable disturbance to local residents. However, before
refusing a licence on these grounds the Council will consider
whether such disturbance may be avoided by the application of
conditions.
The applicant proposes to remove the conditions outlined in
3.1(f) and replace with conditions in 3.1(g) - all other
conditions in Appendix B remain unchanged.
(i) Noise from Premises
In the case of every premises licence application the Council will
consider whether the sound from music and/or customers may
escape from the premises, noise from ventilation and other
mechanical plant is minimal, steps are taken to ensure patrons and
staff leave the premises quietly (including the prominent display of
notices to this effect), arrangements are made for patrons to park

Agenda Item 6

Page 30
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020

their cars in a manner that does not disturb or inconvenience local
residents and arrangements are made to minimise noise from taxis.
Conditions may be imposed to satisfy these considerations.
The applicant proposes to remove the conditions outlined in
3.1(f) and replace with conditions in 3.1(g) - all other conditions
in Appendix B remain unchanged.
(d) The Protection of Children
This may, for example, be achieved by ensuring children are not
admitted to premises on days when adult entertainment is provided,
that ‘proof of age’ cards complying with the Home Office approved
Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS), such as those promoted
by the Portman Group, are required for the supply of alcohol, and
that children are not admitted, or allowed to remain on, premises
after a certain time.
The applicant proposes to remove the conditions outlined in
3.1(f) and replace with conditions in 3.1(g) - all other
conditions in Appendix B remain unchanged.
5.

Determining the Application
(a)

The Sub-Committee is obliged to determine this application with a
view to promoting the licensing objectives, which are:


the prevention of crime and disorder;



public safety;



the prevention of public nuisance;



the protection of children from harm.

(b)

In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is also obliged to have
regard to the Secretary of State’s Guidance and the Council’s
adopted Licensing Policy.

(c)

The Sub-Committee must also have regard to all of the
representations made and the evidence it hears and must take
such of the following steps, as it considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives:
(i) grant the application as requested;
(ii) modify the conditions of the licence, by altering, omitting or
adding to them; or
(iii) reject the whole or part of the application.

Page 31

Agenda Item 6

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020
(d)

6.

The Sub-Committee is asked to note that it may not modify the
conditions or reject the whole or part of the application merely
because the Sub-Committee considers it desirable to do so.
Modification or rejection must actually be appropriate in order to
promote the licensing objectives.

Observations on the Application:
The Premises is Public House situated on Spital Street Dartford and is part
of the late night economy for Dartford High Street. The Premises is licenced
under the Licensing Act 2003 and has held a Licence since May 2018.
The application to vary the premises was received on the 8 June 2020 and
the consultation period ran between the 9 June 2020 and the 6 July 2020,
during this period blue notices were displayed at the premises, in a local
newspaper and on the Council’s website.
During the consultation period, representations were received from the
Police, Environmental Health and an interested party. All the objections to
the application are based on how granting the licence will have an effect on
the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder, prevention
of public nuisance and public safety.

7.

Conclusion:
This application is for the Sub-Committee to determine in light of the
representations received, the evidence before it and the promotion of the
licensing objectives.

8. Relationship to the Corporate Plan
Not Applicable.
9. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk
assessments
Financial Implications

None

Legal Implications

As included in Secretary of State's
Guidance.
None
None
As included in Secretary of State's
Guidance.

Staffing Implications
Administrative Implications
Risk Assessment

10. Appendices:
Appendix A: Variation application

Agenda Item 6

Page 32
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020

Appendix B: Current Premises Licence
Appendix C: Representation from Police
Appendix D: Representation from Environmental Health
Appendix E: Representation from Interested Party
Appendix F: Local Policy Considerations
Appendix G: Secretary of State Guidance Considerations.
BACKGROUND PAPERS
Documents
consulted

Date

Application
Form
All other
documents
mentioned

8 June
20202
25 June to
6 July
2020

File
Ref

Report
Author

Section and
Directorate

Joanne Philpott
01322 343024
Joanne Philpott
01322 343024

Licensing
Strategic
Licensing
Strategic

Exempt
Information
Category
N/A
N/A

Page 33

Agenda Item 6

Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We Yvonne Rickards
(Insert name(s) of applicant)
being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below
Premises licence number
18/00068/LAPLN
Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Wig & Gown
Spital Street
Dartford
Kent

Post town

Dartford

Postcode

Telephone number at premises (if any)
Non-domestic rateable value of premises

£

Part 2 – Applicant details
Daytime contact
telephone number
E-mail address (optional)
Current postal address if
different from premises
address

Post town

Postcode

Page 1 of 13

DA1 2DX

Agenda Item 6

Page 34

Part 3 - Variation
Please tick as appropriate
Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible?

Yes
No

If not, from what date do you want the variation to take effect?

DD

MM

YYYY

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the introduction of the late night
levy? (Please see guidance note 1)
Yes
 No
Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see guidance note
2)
To include Films, Live music and late night refreshment on the licence.
To remove / amend the current condition on the licence.

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people
are expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the
number expected to attend:

Page 2 of 13

Page 35

Agenda Item 6

Part 4 Operating Schedule
Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful.
Provision of regulated entertainment (Please see guidance note
3)

Please tick all that
apply

a)

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b)

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c)

indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d)

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e)

live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f)

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g)

performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

h)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)



Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)
Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 3 of 13





Agenda Item 6

Page 36

B
Films
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors
or outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 4)

Indoors



Outdoors

Day

Start

Finish

Both

Mon

08:00

00:30

Tue

08:00

00:30

Wed

08:00

00:30

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read
guidance note 6)

Thur

08:00

00:30

Sundays prior to a Bank Holiday, Christmas Eve and New Year’s
Eve until 02:00

Fri

08:00

02:30

Sat

08:00

02:30

Sun

08:00

00:30

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Page 4 of 13

Page 37

Agenda Item 6

E
Live music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day

Start

Finish

Mon

19:00

00:00

Will the performance of live music take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please
read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors
Both



Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)
Acoustic music in the garden until 22:00 every day

Tue

19:00

00:00

Wed

19:00

00:00

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music
(please read guidance note 6)

Thur

19:00

00:00

Sundays prior to a Bank Holiday, Christmas Eve and New Year’s
Eve until 02:00

Fri

19:00

02:00

Sat

19:00

02:00

Sun

19:00

00:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Page 5 of 13

Agenda Item 6

Page 38

I
Late night
refreshment
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day

Start

Finish

Mon

23:00

00:00

Tue

23:00

00:00

Wed

23:00

00:00

Thur

23:00

00:00

Fri

23:00

00:00

Sat

23:00

00:00

Sun

23:00

00:00

Will the provision of late night refreshment
take place indoors or outdoors or both –
please tick (please read guidance note 4)

Indoors



Outdoors
Both
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment (please read guidance note 6)

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
guidance note 7)

K
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 10).

Page 6 of 13

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

L
Hours premises are
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day

Start

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 6)

Finish

Mon

Tue

Wed

Thur

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be
open to the public at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Fri

Sat

Sun

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be
removed as a consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking.
Remove condition the following conditions and replace with new ones listed in section M







When the premises are open on Thursday, Friday and Saturdays and
Bank holidays there will be no admission or re-admission after 00:00
hours.
The rear garden shall not be used by patrons after 21:00 Sunday to
Thursday, nor after 22:30 on Fridays, Saturdays, Bank Holidays or
Christmas Eve.
Bottles and other waste should not be removed from the premises and
tipped into refuse and recycling bins between 21:00 and 08:00. Kitchen
waste may be emptied until 21:30. Waste and recycling bins utilised
shall be lidded and large enough to hold all waste generated by the
premises.
When the premises are open between 20:00hrs till close on Thursday,
Friday and Saturdays and Bank Holidays a minimum of 4 SIA door
supervisors must be present at the customer entrance and exit of the
premises.
Page 7 of 13

Agenda Item 6

Page 40

M

Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a
result of the proposed variation:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 11)

b) The prevention of crime and disorder



When the premises are open between 20:00 hrs till close on Friday and
Saturdays and Bank Holidays a minimum of 3 SIA door supervisors
must be present at the customer entrance and exit of the premises.



When the premises are open on Friday and Saturdays and Bank
holidays there will be no admission or re-admission after 01:45 hours.

c) Public safety

d) The prevention of public nuisance




The rear garden shall not be used by patrons after 00:00 Sunday to
Saturday, Bank Holidays or Christmas Eve. The garden in now an
enclosed area which will limit sound escaping.
Bottles and other waste should not be removed from the premises and
tipped into refuse and recycling bins between 00:00 and 08:00. Kitchen
waste may be emptied until 00:30. Waste and recycling bins utilised
shall be lidded and large enough to hold all waste generated by the
premises.

e) The protection of children from harm

Page 8 of 13

Page 41

Agenda Item 6

Please tick as appropriate


I have enclosed the premises licence
I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence

If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the licence or part
of it below
Reasons why I have not enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement
I have made or enclosed payment of the fee; or
I have not made or enclosed payment of the fee because this application has been
made in relation to the introduction of the late night levy.
I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable.
I understand that I must now advertise my application.
I have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation.
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected.
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.
Part 5 – Signatures (please read guidance note 12)
Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant’s solicitor or other
duly authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant,
please state in what capacity.
Signature

Yvonne Rocjards

Date

8 June 2020

Capacity

Licensee

Page 9 of 13

Agenda Item 6

Page 42

Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the current premises
licence holder) or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent (please read guidance
note 14). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.
Signature
Date
Capacity
Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 15)

Post town
Post code
Telephone number (if any)
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

Page 10 of 13

Page 43

Agenda Item 6

Notes for Guidance
This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the
licence has effect or to vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to
make that type of change to the premises licence, you should make a new premises licence
application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1. You do not have to pay a fee if the only purpose of the variation for which you are
applying is to avoid becoming liable for the late night levy
2. Describe the premises. For example, the type of premises, its general situation and layout
and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where
your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place of
consumption of these off-supplies of alcohol, you must include a description of where the
place will be and its proximity to the premises.
3. In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:
 Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
 Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening
from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such
screening abides by age classification ratings.
 Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.
 Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest,
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between
08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.
Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which
combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a
boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event.
 Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, on any premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is
responsible for the premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a
school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the
relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.
 Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

Page 11 of 13

Agenda Item 6

o
o

o

Page 44

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol,
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser
gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for
the premises.
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or
(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.



Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.
 Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, with no limit on audience size for:
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local
authority;
o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the
health care provider;
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and
o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience,
and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for
more than 28 consecutive days.
4. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors
may include a tent).
5. For example state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant
further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified
or unamplified.
6. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during
the summer months.
7. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
8. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the
week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.
9. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the
premises’. If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the
premises, please tick ‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please
tick ‘both’.
10. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to
the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children regardless of
whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not
exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of
gaming machines.
11. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
12. The application form must be signed.
Page 12 of 13

Page 45

Agenda Item 6

13. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.
14. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agents
must sign the application form.
15. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page 13 of 13

Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 47

Agenda Item 6

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE

18/00068/LAPLN

PART A

LICENSING AUTHORITY

Dartford Borough Council
Civic Centre
Home Gardens
Dartford
Kent
DA1 1DR

Wig & Gown
The Court House
Spital Street
Dartford
Kent
DA1 2DX
Telephone Number:
Where the Licence is time limited
the dates:

Not applicable

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence:
Sale of Alcohol
Live Music
Late Night Refreshment
Recorded Music

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Sale of Alcohol
Description
Sunday To Thursday
Friday To Saturday

From
To
10:00 - 00:00
10:00 - 02:00

Seasonal Details
Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve 10:00 to 02:00
Page 1 of 9
18/00068/LAPLN

Agenda Item 6

Page 48

Live Music
Description
Thursday

From To
19:00 - 00:00

Late Night Refreshment
Description
Friday To Saturday
Thursday

From To
23:00 - 02:00
23:00 - 00:00

Seasonal Details
Sundays prior to Bank Holidays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve 23:00 to 02:00
Recorded Music
Description
Friday To Saturday
Thursday

From To
19:00 - 02:00
19:00 - 00:00

Seasonal Details
Sundays prior to a Bank Holiday, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve 19:00 to 02:00

The opening hours of the premises:
Sunday To Thursday
Friday To Saturday

08:00
08:00

00:30
02:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off
supplies:
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premises

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence:
Yvonne Rickards
38 Bedford Road
Dartford
Kent
DA1 1SR

Page 2 of 9
18/00068/LAPLN

Page 49

Agenda Item 6

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)

Name address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply of alcohol:
Mrs Yvonne Rickards
38 Bedford Road
Dartford
Kent
DA1 1SR
Personal Licence number and issuing authority of Personal Licence held by Designated
Premises Supervisor (where the premises authorises for the supply of alcohol):
Personal licence Number:
Licensing Authority:

Licence Number:
DH/PER/240/2005
Licensing Authority: Dartford Borough Council

Sheri Green
Original Issue date of Premises Licence:
Date of last change: 21st May 2018

Page 3 of 9
18/00068/LAPLN

Agenda Item 6

Page 50

ANNEXES
ANNEX 1 – MANDATORY CONDITIONS
1.

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence –
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence, or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

2.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person
who holds a personal licence.

3.

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

4.

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

5.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.
Page 4 of 9
18/00068/LAPLN

Page 51

Agenda Item 6

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—
(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.
6.

The responsible person must ensure that—
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measures—
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

7.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
For the purposes of this condition (a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula –
P = D + (D x V)
where (i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence (i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
Page 5 of 9
18/00068/LAPLN

Agenda Item 6

Page 52

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a

licence;
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994.
8.

Where the permitted price would (apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies,
the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that
sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

9.

(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price on a day (“the first day”) would be
different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to
the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

If the Premises Licence allows Exhibition of Films
1. Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition
requiring the admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with
this section.
2. Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies,
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation by that body.
3. Where
(a) The film classification body is not specified in the licence, or
(b) The relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection
applies to the film in question,
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that
licensing authority.
4. In this section “children” means any person aged under 18; and “film classification body” means
the person or persons designated as the authority under Section 4 of the Video Recordings Act
1984(c39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).
If the Premises Licence has conditions in respect of Door Supervision except theatres,
cinemas, bingo halls and casinos
1. Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals
Page 6 of 9
18/00068/LAPLN

Page 53

Agenda Item 6

must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must:
(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry
Act 2001; or
(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.
2. But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed:
(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry
Act 2001 (c12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or
(b) in respect of premises in relation to:
(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used
exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising
plays or films or under a gaming licence), or
(ii) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by
regulations under that Act.
3. For the purposes of this section:
(a) “security activity” means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and,
which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act, (see Section 3(2) of that Act) and
(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it applies
in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

ANNEX 2 – CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE
General Licensing Objectives:
CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of evidential
quality in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition. Cameras shall encompass all ingress
and egress to the premises, fire exits and all areas where the sale and supply of alcohol occurs.
Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly time and date stamped,
recordings MUST be kept on the hard drive and kept for a period of 28 days and handed to Police
and or Local Authority upon reasonable request.
The premises licence holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of staff is capable
and competent at downloading CCTV footage in a recordable format to the Police and Local
Authority upon reasonable request. In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the
premises licence holder or DPS must report the failure to the Police Licensing Officer and Local
Authority within 24 hours unless the CCTV will be repaired before that time
(licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk)
All persons that sell or supply alcohol to customers must have licensing training.
Training should take place within six weeks of employment and any new employees will be
supervised until the training has taken place. Refresher training should be repeated a minimum of
every six months or earlier if required due to changes of legislation. Training records must be kept
on the premises and shall contain the nature, content and frequency of all training. Records must
be made available for inspection by Police, Police Licensing Officer and authorised officers from the
Local Authority upon request either electronically or hard copy.
Page 7 of 9
18/00068/LAPLN

Agenda Item 6

Page 54

When the premises is open between Thursday to Sunday and Bank Holidays from 20:00 hours until
close, the designated premises supervisor shall ensure that at least one personal licence holder is
available on the licensed premises while the sale of alcohol is being undertaken at the premises.
Prevention Of Crime and Disorder Objectives:
The licensee shall ensure that no customers will take glasses or open bottles from the premises.
The premises licence holder or DPS shall maintain an accurate and up to date register in respect of
all stewards, security staff or door supervisors working at the premises when it is open to the public.
The register will comprise of:
- the name, address, telephone number of the member of staff
- any registration number relating to the steward or door supervisor whether employed directly by the
licensee or through an agency
- the name, address and telephone number of the agency providing stewards, security staff or door
supervisor where not employed directly by the licensee
- the dates and times of commencement and finishing of work
- signature of the member of staff
- details of any incident in which the member of staff is involved including any calls to the police and
any police action taken.
The premises shall have a written drugs policy, this will detail the strategies to minimise the use and
supply of illegal drugs within the premises. The drugs policy shall include a structured training
policy for all staff covering the issues of misuse of drugs in relation to licensed premises. Records
must be kept to show members of staff who have taken the training.
Public Safety Objectives:
The premises licence holder or designated premises supervisor must keep an incident register.
Staff members are to be trained to complete an incident book/records immediately after the incident
but no later than the end of their shift. The register must be kept on the premises and will detail:
- Day, date and time of incident
- Nature of incident
- Resolution
- Each entry is to be checked and signed by the DPS/Licensee no later than 1 week after the entry
has been made. The register must be made available to Police, Police Licensing Officers and
authorised officers from the Local Authority either electronically or hard copy.
Prevention of Public Nuisance Objectives:
When the premises is open between Thursday to Sunday and Bank Holidays from 21:00 hours until
close, all bottles will be decanted into polycarbonate or suitably toughened glass vessels save for
when complete bottles of wine or champagne have been purchased.
When the premises are open on Thursday, Friday and Saturdays and Bank holidays there will be no
admission or re-admission after 00:00 hours.
When the premises are open between 20:00hrs till close on Thursday, Friday and Saturdays and
Bank Holidays a minimum of 4 SIA door supervisors must be present at the customer entrance and
exit of the premises.
Page 8 of 9
18/00068/LAPLN

Page 55

Agenda Item 6

When the premises close, door supervisors will assist in the dispersal of patrons from the venue and
the area immediately in front of the premises reminding customers to leave quietly.
Protection of Children from Harm Objectives:
No entertainment of a sexual or adult nature shall take place at this venue.
No under 18 children on site after 21:00 hours
ANNEX 3 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING
1. Doors and windows to the premises shall be kept shut during the playing of music, with the
exception of doors being opened to allow access and egress of patrons.
2. The rear garden shall not be used by patrons after 21:00 Sunday to Thursday, nor after 22:30 on
Fridays, Saturdays, Bank Holidays or Christmas Eve.
3. Metal furniture shall not be used in the rear garden.
4. A speaker system shall not be installed in the rear garden. Live and recorded music shall not be
played in the rear garden.
5. A Noise Management Scheme , including the installation of an electronic noise limiting device ,to
be utilised at all times when live or recorded music is played, to be submitted and approved by the
Local Authority Environmental Protection . Levels set to be tamper proof and to be agreed to the
satisfaction of Environmental Protection. The scheme may include the utilisation of sound lobbies
and secondary glazing.
6. Bottles and other waste should not be removed from the premises and tipped into refuse and
recycling bins between 21:00 and 08:00. Kitchen waste may be emptied until 21:30. Waste and
recycling bins utilised shall be lidded and large enough to hold all waste generated by the premises.
7. Hours for deliveries and collections from the premises shall be between 08:00 to 20:00 Monday to
Saturday and 09:00 and 17:00 on Sundays, save for Bakery deliveries.
8. Signage shall be used, together with announcements, if possible, to advise patrons and staff to be
quiet when leaving the premises. The signs shall be large, bold and clearly displayed for all patrons
to see.
9. A log shall be maintained of all noise complaints received by the premises.

Page 9 of 9
18/00068/LAPLN

Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 57

Agenda Item 6

Chief officer of Police Representation in relation to an application for variation of premises
licence made under Part 3 Section 34 Licensing Act 20039 (S35 Licensing Act 2003 )
Details of person making representation
Name of Chief Officer of Police
Chief Superintendent Wilson
Postal Address:
Medway Police Station
(Divisional Headquarters)
Purser Way
Gillingham
Kent
ME7 1NE
E-mail address
licensing.north.division@kent.police.uk
Telephone Numbers:
Licensing Co-ordinator
Geoff Rowley 01634 792733
Licensing Officers
Chris Hill 01634 792276
Clare Cossar 01634 792411
Diane Holroyd 01634 792388
Dan Hunt 01634 792388
Details of premises representation is about
Name of Premises:
Wig and Gown
Address of premises:
Spital Street
Dartford
Kent
DA1 2DX
Date application received by
6th June 2020
police
Date representation sent to
25th June 2020
Licensing Authority
All representations must be made
within 28 days of receipt of initial
application
The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club
Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005. Part 4 Reg.
22.

The Chief Officer of Police has received an application for the grant of a premises licence
made under the provisions of Section 17 Licensing Act 2003, and under Section 18 of that
Act, asks the Licensing Authority to consider these representations in respect of: Prevention of crime and disorder
X
Public Safety
X
Prevention of public nuisance
X
Protection of children from harm

Is this a representation regarding the Designation of Premises Supervisor under S18 (9)
Licensing Act 2003?
No
If yes complete the appropriate statement:

Agenda Item 6

Page 58

Please give the reason for the representation and detail the evidence supporting it under
the appropriate headings:

During the day this premises operates as a traditional pub and offers a full food menu. It
has live sports on the TV.
On a Thursday night the pub will regularly put on a live band, and it is licensed
until 00:00 hrs and closes at 00:30 hours.
However, on Friday and Saturday evenings (and evenings leading into a bank holiday and
bank holidays) the dynamic of the pub changes from a traditional pub into a nightclub which
closes at 02:30 hours. A DJ is employed, disco lights are on and loud music pumped out
across the bar area so people can use the bar area which is cleared of tables and chairs as a
dance floor. The pub becomes attractive to persons wanting a livelier night out in Dartford.
Kent Police understand there are no proposals to vary these operating hours as part of
this application.
•

Addition of Films to premises licence

The applicant wants to remove the following conditions;
•

When the premises are open on Thursday, Friday and Saturday and Bank holidays there will
be no admission or re-admission after 00:00

•

The rear garden shall not be used by patrons after 21:00 Sunday to Thursday, nor after 22:30
on Fridays, Saturdays, Bank Holidays or Christmas Eve.

•

Bottles and other waste should not be removed from the premises and tipped into refuse and
recycling bins between 21:00 and 08:00. Kitchen waste may be emptied until 21:30. Waste and
recycling bins utilised shall be lidded and large enough to hold all waste generated by the
premises.

•

When The premises are open between 20:00 hrs till close on Thursday, Friday and Saturday
and Bank Holidays a minimum of 4 SIA door supervisors must be present at the customer
entrance and exit of the premises.

and replace the conditions with:
•

When the premises are open between 20:00 hours till close on Friday and Saturdays and
Bank Holidays a minimum of 3 SIA door supervisors must be present at the customer
entrance and exit of the premises.

•

When the premises are open on Friday and Saturday and Bank Holidays there will be no
admission or re-admission after 01:45 hours

•

The rear garden shall not be used by patrons after 00:00 Sunday to Saturday, Bank Holidays or
Christmas Eve. The garden is now an enclosed area which will limit the sound escaping

Page 59

•

Agenda Item 6

Bottles and other waste should not be removed from the premises and tipped into refuse and
recycling bins between 00:00 and 08:00. Kitchen waste may be emptied until 00:30. Waste
and recycling bins utilised shall be lidded and large enough to hold all waste generated by the
premises.

Having considered the application and on speaking with the applicant regarding this on her prior
application, Kent police are not opposed to the below 2 changes but are aware that these Conditions
are related to Noise and were added by the Committee after a Licensing Panel hearing on 21 st
May 2018.
•

The rear garden shall not be used by patrons after 21:00 Sunday to Thursday, nor after 22:30
on Fridays, Saturdays, Bank Holidays or Christmas Eve.

•

Bottles and other waste should not be removed from the premises and tipped into refuse and
recycling bins between 21:00 and 08:00. Kitchen waste may be emptied until 21:30. Waste and
recycling bins utilised shall be lidded and large enough to hold all waste generated by the
premises.
Regarding the below two amended conditions put forward in the application:

•

When the premises are open between 20:00 hours till close on Friday and Saturdays and
Bank Holidays a minimum of 3 SIA door supervisors must be present at the customer
entrance and exit of the premises.

Kent Police accept that not all Thursday night live music events draw in large crowds, however there
are many occasions when popular bands are on and the dynamics of the pub change. Kent Police
would not object to the removal of SIA door supervisors on Thursday night, but only if we could have
a condition similar to:
Sunday-Thursday, the Designated Premises Supervisor will undertake a risk assessment in
respect of the provision of door supervisors for any events and where deemed appropriate a
minimum of 4 door supervisors will be employed from 20:00 hrs.
With regards to reducing SIA door supervisors on Friday and Saturday nights and Bank Holidays and
the evening leading into a bank holiday from 4 to 3, we are opposed to this. Kent Police believe in
order to promote the licensing objectives that a minimum of 4 SIA staff are required. The venue is a
large pub which is in the heart of Dartford town centre with several other licensed pubs near by. It is
in an area that suffers with night-time economy anti-social behaviour and crime and disorder, which
is generally alcohol fuelled. The SIA staff need to manage the front door, inside the venue and the
rear garden as well as managing the toilets which are up the stairs. The SIA supervisors play an
important role in preventing crime and disorder. Similarly, the provision of requirements for 4 door
supervisors is to control entry to the premises, ensure that people who are drunk, drug dealers or
people carrying weapons do not enter the premises and ensuring that the police are kept informed
and prevent disorder inside the pub.
•

When the premises are open on Friday and Saturday and Bank Holidays there will be no
admission or re-admission after 01:45 hours

Kent Police are opposed to this because we believe it does not promote the licensing objectives of
promoting Public Safety and preventing Crime and disorder.

Agenda Item 6

Page 60

This condition in is place to stop people that have been ejected from other venues coming to the
venue, and then causing incidents later in the evening. As previously stated the pub is more like a
nightclub Friday and Saturday nights and bank holidays, and the loud music which can be heard
from the street and lights attract people walking past to the venue. This last re-entry at midnight
condition has proven to be effective as since the new license has been granted there have been
far few reported incidents at the pub. This has also been supported by having 4 SIA supervisors
working.
The DPS has previously stated that the potential customers that they turn away after Midnight
often have become abusive and aggressive towards staff. It has been explained that these are
not the people that should be coming into the venue as they clearly are agitated and intoxicated
to behave that way when refused access.
Kent police feel that the applicant is doing this purely for monetary gain rather than to promote the
licensing objectives and has not considered the risks associated with the removal of this condition.
The DPS has been found to be breaching her conditions since taking over the venue, those being; not
having door staff on a Thursday when open for licensable activity and having live music on a Friday
night. These have been dealt with by way of a warning and working with the DPS to ensure
compliance.
To summarise, Kent Police seek an amendment of condition for the requirement of SIA door staff on
Thursday night, and object to decreasing door staff Friday, Saturday and Bank Holidays and object to
admission/readmission to 01:45 hour.

CLARE COSSAR

PC 12431 Cossar
PP. Ch. Supt WILSON
North Division Area Commander

Date: 25th June 2020

Page 61

Agenda Item 6

Consultee Comments for Licensing Application
20/00178/LAFULV
Application Summary
Application Number: 20/00178/LAFULV
Address: The Court House Spital Street Dartford Kent DA1 2DX
Proposal: Premises Licence Full Variation
Case Officer: Caroline Hillman
Consultee Details
Name: Mrs Julie Short
Address: Dartford Borough Council, Civic Centre, Home Gardens Dartford, Kent DA1 1DR
Email: Not Available
On Behalf Of: EH Support
Comments
I refer to this application to vary the premises licence.
No complaints have been received since the current licence was authorised and I would suggest
that this is due to appropriate timings having been imposed upon that licence.
The current request to alter times when the garden can be utilised from 21:00 Sunday to Thursday
and 22:30 Friday ,Saturdays ,Bank Holidays and Christmas Eve to 00:00 seven days a week has
potential to impact on local residents relaxing and sleeping in their homes. The applicant has had
no discussion with Environmental Protection regarding the "enclosure" installed to limit sound
escaping.
I OBJECT to this variation on behalf of the Environmental Protection Team.
Similarly the alteration of no bottle and other waste deposition taking place between 21:00 to
08:00 to no deposition between 00:00 to 08:00 with kitchen waste not being emptied from 21:30 to
00:00, is likely to have a deleterious impact, hence
I OBJECT to this variation on behalf of the Environmental Protection Team.
The applicant is also seeking to play live music, both indoors and outdoors from 19:00 to 00:00
Sunday to Thursday and from 19:00 to 02:00 on Friday and Saturday. Currently this is conditioned
1900 to 0000 on a Thursday.
Again
I OBJECT to these times being added to the licence in respect of live music
Julie

Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 63

Agenda Item 6

From: Rosanna Currans <Rosanna.Currans@dartford.gov.uk>
Sent: 06 July 2020 09:59
To: Joanne Philpott <Joanne.Philpott@dartford.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Wig and Gown
Dear Joanne,
I am concerned that the flats that are nearby the Wig and Gown could have problems with noise,
disturbance, unruly customers causing problems whilst drinking etc. Once the garden is closed to
those who smoke where will they go for their cigarette? The only place would be at the front of the
pub and this could cause cigarette ends being thrown on the pavement outside the boundaries of
the establishment causing more littering. I was looking at the application when they have 11pm on
the sheets and mistook this to be the normal closing time. Having live music would cause more
noise. I know they have air conditioning and that they may close all windows and doors but, from
knowledge of another establishment with this, on a hot and sticky evening windows or doors do get
opened and cause a problem for residents close by.
Should there be any problems, fights, drunken behaviour or the like, who is going to deal with
this? One expects the police will be called. I do appreciate that just being yet another late opening
establishment is not a valid reason to object especially now I know they already have a licence for
these hours.
My objection is linked to the licensing objectives of public nuisance and prevention of crime and
disorder.
Kind regards,
Rosanna

Councillor Rosanna Currans,
Lead Member for Town Centre Regeneration
Dartford Borough Council, Civic Centre

Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 65

Agenda Item 6
APPENDIX D

LOCAL POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

It is considered that the following Policies have a bearing upon the
application:

1.7

The Policy does not undermine the rights of any person to apply under
the 2003 Act for a variety of permissions and have the application
considered on its individual merits, as well as against the relevant
policy and statutory framework. It does not override the right of any
person to make representations on any application or seek a review of
a licence or certificate where they are permitted to do so under the
2003 Act. In formulating this policy the Licensing Authority has had
regard to the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998. This Act
places a duty on public authorities to protect the rights of individuals in
a variety of circumstances, and to balance those rights against the
rights of persons trading in licensable activities and to achieve
proportionality. The Licensing Authority has also had regard to the
Race Relations Act 1976 as amended by The Race Relations
(Amendment) Act 2000, and to the Disability Discrimination Act 1995.

1.9

The Licensing Authority recognises the aspirations of the legislation
that longer licensing hours with regard to the sale of alcohol are
important to ensure that the concentration of customers leaving
premises simultaneously are avoided. However, there is no general
presumption in favour of lengthening licensing hours and the four
licensing objectives will be paramount considerations at all times.
Where there are objections to an application and the Licensing
Authority believes that changing the licensing hours would undermine
the licensing objectives, they may reject the application or grant it with
appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.

1.10

The Licensing Authority may not impose any conditions unless its
discretion has been engaged following receipt of relevant
representations and it has been satisfied at a hearing of the necessity
to impose conditions. It may then only impose conditions that are
necessary to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. A
hearing is not required where an application has been lawfully made
and no responsible authority or interested party has made a
representation. In these cases, the Licensing Authority must grant the
application in the terms sought, subject only to conditions which are
consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory
conditions in the Act.
The object of licensing is to maintain appropriate control of licensed
premises, qualifying clubs, temporary events and the people who
manage them or hold personal licences within the terms of the 2003
Act. Where any party makes relevant representations, the Licensing
Authority will seek to make objective judgements as to whether

Agenda Item 6

Page 66
APPENDIX D

conditions may need to be attached to a licence, certificate to secure
achievement of the licensing objectives. Any such conditions will
primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at
licensed premises on those attending the premises and members of
the public living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity in the
vicinity and will cover issues that are reasonably within the control of
individual licensees.
3.3

The promotion of the licensing objective, to prevent crime and
disorder, places a responsibility on licence holders to become key
partners in achieving this objective. Applicants will be encouraged to
demonstrate in their operating schedule, when necessary, that suitable
and sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented
and maintained to reduce or prevent crime and disorder on and in the
vicinity of their premises, relevant to the individual style and
characteristics of their premises and events.

4.1

The Licensing Authority is committed to ensuring that the safety of any
person visiting or working in licensed premises is not compromised. To
this end, applicants will be encouraged to demonstrate in their
operating schedule, when necessary, that suitable and sufficient
measures have been identified and will be implemented and
maintained to ensure public safety, relevant to the individual style and
characteristics of their premises and events.

5.1

Licensed premises have a significant potential to adversely impact on
communities through public nuisances that arise from their operation.
The Licensing Authority wishes to proactively maintain and protect the
amenity of residents and other businesses from the potential
consequence of the operation of licensed premises whilst recognising
the valuable cultural, social and business importance that such
premises provide.

5.3

Applicants need to clearly understand that the Licensing Authority will
pay particular attention whether or not to impose stricter conditions,
including controls on licensing hours, where licensed premises are in
residential areas with a view to protecting the quality of life of
residential occupiers.

5.5

Applicants will be encouraged to demonstrate in their operating
schedule, when necessary, that suitable and sufficient measures have
been identified and will be implemented and maintained to prevent
public nuisance, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of
their premises and events.

Page 67

Agenda Item 6
APPENDIX G

SECRETARY OF STATE GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS
It is considered that the following matters set out in the Secretary of State's Guidance have a
bearing upon the application:
Licensing objectives and aims
1.2

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which
must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

1.3

The licensing objectives are:
•
The prevention of crime and disorder;
•
Public safety;
•
The prevention of public nuisance; and
•
The protection of children from harm.

1.4

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives,
so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.

1.5

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes. These
are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in licensing work.
They include:
•
•
•
•
•

protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;
giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy and take action against those
premises that are causing problems;
recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in
our local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business,
encouraging innovation and supporting responsible premises;
providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions
about the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and
encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions
that may affect them.

Each application on its own merits
1.17 Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives in an individual case.
Crime and Disorder

2.3

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10).
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the

Agenda Item 6

Page 68

presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers. But
any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure that
the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.
Public nuisance
2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club premises
certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this licensing
objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the
licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including
those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light
pollution, noxious smells and litter.
2.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises.
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust,
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.
2.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control the
levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple measure
such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or
persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. More
sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However,
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type,
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.
2.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their
powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and
additional conditions may be appropriate.
2.19 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions should
normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive period for
people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early morning
when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping.
This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music between 11
pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the
premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers
enter and leave.

Page 69

Agenda Item 6

2.20 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting outside
premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may itself give
rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and
responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.
2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in antisocial behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they wish
to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to
respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.
The role of responsible authorities
9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases it
is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main
source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. For example, the police
have a key role in managing the night-time economy and should have good working
relationships with those operating in their local area. The police should usually therefore
be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters relating to the promotion of
the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any responsible authority under the
2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the licensing objectives if they
have evidence to support such representations. Licensing authorities must therefore
consider all relevant representations from responsible authorities carefully, even where
the reason for a particular responsible authority’s interest or expertise in the promotion of
a particular objective may not be immediately apparent. However, it remains incumbent
on all responsible authorities to ensure that their representations can withstand the
scrutiny to which they would be subject at a hearing.
Hearings
9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and
should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.
9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate
weight to:
•
the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;
•
the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the
parties;
•
this Guidance;
•
its own statement of licensing policy.
9.39 The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the conclusion
of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide reasons to support
it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties. Notification of a
decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party to appeal. After
considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the application
subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule. Any
conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;
there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is merely

Agenda Item 6

Page 70

aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to the
health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to the
licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a hearing has not
been necessary.
9.40 Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this
is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify
a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable
activities.
Appeals
13.2 With the exception of appeals in relation to closure orders, an appeal may be made to
any magistrates’ court in England or Wales but it is expected that applicants would bring
an appeal in a magistrates’ court in the area in which they or the premises are situated.
13.3 An appeal has to be commenced by the appellant giving a notice of appeal to the
designated officer for the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days beginning with the
day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision which is
being appealed.
13.4 The licensing authority will always be a respondent to the appeal, but in cases where a
favourable decision has been made for an applicant, licence holder, club or premises
user against the representations of a responsible authority or any other person, or the
objections of the chief officer of police, the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement), or
local authority exercising environmental health functions, the holder of the premises or
personal licence or club premises certificate or the person who gave an interim authority
notice or the premises user will also be a respondent to the appeal, and the person who
made the relevant representation or gave the objection will be the appellants.
13.5 Where an appeal has been made against a decision of the licensing authority, the
licensing authority will in all cases be the respondent to the appeal and may call as a
witness a responsible authority or any other person who made representations against
the application, if it chooses to do so. For this reason, the licensing authority should
consider keeping responsible authorities and others informed of developments in relation
to appeals to allow them to consider their position. Provided the court considers it
appropriate, the licensing authority may also call as witnesses any individual or body that
they feel might assist their response to an appeal.
Licensing policy statements and Section 182 guidance
13.8 In hearing an appeal against any decision made by a licensing authority, the magistrates’
court will have regard to that licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy and this
Guidance. However, the court would be entitled to depart from either the statement of
licensing policy or this Guidance if it considered it was justified to do so because of the
individual circumstances of any case. In other words, while the court will normally
consider the matter as if it were “standing in the shoes” of the licensing authority, it would
be entitled to find that the licensing authority should have departed from its own policy or
the Guidance because the particular circumstances would have justified such a decision.
13.9 In addition, the court is entitled to disregard any part of a licensing policy statement or
this Guidance that it holds to be ultra vires the 2003 Act and therefore unlawful. The
normal course for challenging a statement of licensing policy or this Guidance should be
by way of judicial review, but where it is submitted to an appellate court that a statement
of policy is itself ultra vires the 2003 Act and this has a direct bearing on the case before
it, it would be inappropriate for the court, on accepting such a submission, to compound
the original error by relying on that part of the statement of licensing policy affected.

Page 71

Agenda Item 6

Fundamental principles of the Statement of Policy
14.12 Statements of policies should make clear that:
•
licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, by
qualifying clubs and at temporary events within the terms of the 2003 Act; and
•
conditions attached to various authorisations will be focused on matters which
are within the control of individual licence holders and others with relevant
authorisations, i.e. the premises and its vicinity.
14.13 A statement of policy should also make clear that licensing law is not the primary
mechanism for the general control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals
once they are away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the direct
control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate or authorisation
concerned. Nonetheless, it is a key aspect of such control and licensing law will always
be part of a holistic approach to the management of the evening and night-time
economy in town and city centres.

Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank

